
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 20, 2001 – 7:00 PM  
J. NEWTON COHEN SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Steve Blount, Chairman 

Gus Andrews, Vice-Chairman 
Arnold Chamberlain, Member 

Frank Tadlock, Member 
Leda Belk, Member 

 
The County Manager, the Clerk to the Board and the Finance Director were 
also present. 
 
Chairman Blount called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   
 
Commissioner Chamberlain provided the Invocation and Commissioner 
Tadlock led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 

• Mr. Russell requested a closed session to discuss an issue on the 
purchase of property. 

• Mr. Russell requested a closed session to discuss an Economic 
Development Issue.  

• Mr. Russell requested the addition for the approval of Airport 
Resolutions. 

 
COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Andrews stated that water and well drilling issues were 
discussed at the health board meeting and these issues will be addressed in 
future discussions. 
 

 1



Commissioner Chamberlain stated that he had attended a meeting of the  
Fire & Rescue Association Board and feels that things are “taking shape” 
with Emergency Services.   
 
Commissioner Tadlock reiterated Commissioner Chamberlain’s comments 
and emphasized that the EMS Task Force is doing a good job. 
 
Commissioner Belk stated that DSS had gone through the process of 
accreditation and is waiting for the state to give final approval.  
Commissioner Belk informed the Board that DSS is on “sound ground” and 
that Rowan County would be the eleventh county in the state to go through 
the accreditation process. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA: 
 
Vocational Workshop  
 
Chairman Blount stated that Mr. Terry Osborne, Director of Rowan 
Vocational Workshops would like to address the Board.  
 
Mr. Osborne expressed his appreciation to the Board for the extension of the 
payment for the vocational facility and presented the Board with a check for 
the first of four installments. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Andrews requested to pull item “G” for discussion on the 
YMCA funds. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain requested to pull item “C” for discussion. 
 
Commissioner Belk made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, with the 
exception of items “C” and “G” dealing with the YMCA fund.    Commissioner 
Tadlock seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following: 

 
A. Approval of the minutes for 08/06/01 Board of Commission meeting. 
B. Approval of a Proclamation to approve Family Day – A Day to Eat 

Dinner With Your Children (to prevent substance abuse) 
C. Approval for the change order for APAC-Carolina, Inc. for the runway 

overlay project at the Rowan County Airport  
D. Approval to set a public hearing for the road name of Psalm Street 
E. Approval of a unanimous petition for the road name of Willibee Circle 

 2



F. Approval of a unanimous petition for the road name of Old House Road 
G. Approval of Budget Amendments 

 
Commissioner Chamberlain inquired about a change order from APAC in the amount of 
$91,100.00, for a contract at the Rowan County Airport.   Mr. Chamberlain asked for 
clarification as to why the change order was over fifteen percent of the total price of the 
job. 
 
County Manger Tim Russell explained that the specifications on the runway extension 
required two “2” inches of asphalt.  The Department of Transportation had noticed grass 
growing through cracks in the pavement and recommended the county use a surface 
treatment underneath the asphalt.  Mr. Russell continued by saying that the surface 
treatment would elongate the time when the cracks begin to appear in the new pavement.  
 
Commissioner Andrews explained that money appropriated to the Salisbury YMCA is for 
all of Rowan County and not just the Salisbury branch of the YMCA.  Commissioner 
Andrews stated that he did not want any misrepresentation of how the money is being 
used and that the contribution to the “Y” helps to offset medical expenditures. 
 
Chairman Blount advised the Board that staff is still working on the details for employee 
YMCA memberships as incentives for the United Way Campaign and the information 
will be brought back to Board at a later date. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-18-01, A REQUEST FROM JACQUELINE 
SHUFFLER: 
 
Chairman Blount declared the public hearing for consideration of CUP-18-01 to be in 
session and reviewed that the hearing would focus on an application submitted by 
Jacqueline Shuffler for subdividing property from tax parcel 415-098 currently zoned 
CBI (Commercial, Business, Industrial).  The parent tract is located on Yost Road in 
Litaker Township. 
 
Chairman Blount reviewed the procedural guidelines for the public hearing. 
 
The Clerk administered the oath to those who came forward to provide testimony in the 
case. 
 
Those that came forward to provide testimony are as follows: 
 
Ed Muire, Rowan County Assistant Planner presented the case.  Mr. Muire explained that 
the Board of Commissioners adopted an amendment to the zoning ordinance on 10-18-99 
that made all subdivisions of property in the CBI district a conditional use.  Mr. Muire 
continued by saying the applicant, Ms. Shuffler, owns a 3.456 acre tract and with 174.46 
feet of frontage on Yost Road.   Ms. Shuffler requests to create a new 2.271-acre tract for 
George Edward Spry, Jr., accessed by a new twenty-foot (20’) easement; an .816 acre 
tract fronting Yost Road, retained by Ms. Shuffler; and a .369 acre tract added to a .5 acre 

 3



tract owned by Treva J. Waller.  Mr. Muire referred to the map (Exhibit “A”) reflecting 
the family subdivision proposal. 
 
Mr. Muire stated the staff review reveals that the parcel does not have the necessary 
proximity or acreage to I-85 to be considered as commercial property and in all 
likelihood, the parcel will be recommended for rezoning to an appropriate residential 
category.    
 
Mr. Muire discussed the development requirements for a family subdivision, which 
require the following: 
 

 Subdivision approval 
 Zoning Compliance 
 Access 
 Septic Systems 
 Evaluation Criteria  

 
Mr. Muire stated that Planning Staff recommends approval of the request to subdivide 
Tax Parcel 415-098 in general accordance with Exhibit “A” based on findings indicated 
in the Staff Review. 
 
Chairman Blount inquired as to whether the residential use of the property would impact 
the commercial use of the area.  
 
Mr. Muire responded that the parcel does not have merit for consideration as a 
commercial property. 
 
Chairman Blount officially closed the public hearing period and the Board went into the 
deliberation period. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to accept the recommendation by Planning Staff.  
Commissioner Andrews seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chairman Blount reviewed the Findings of Fact to be as follows: 
 

 The subdivision of the parcel will not impact the commercial development of the 
area. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-19-01, A REQUEST FROM LEILANI WATSON:  
 
Chairman Blount declared the public hearing for consideration of CUP-19-01 to be in 
session and reviewed that the hearing would focus on an application submitted by Ms. 
Leilani Watson for subdividing property from tax parcel 414-050 currently zoned CBI.  
The parent tract is located on Old Concord Road in Litaker Township. 
 
Chairman Blount reviewed the procedural guidelines for the public hearing. 

 4



 
The Clerk administered the oath to those who came forward to provide testimony in the 
case. 
 
Those that came forward to provide testimony are as follows: 
 
Mr. Muire presented the case and explained that the Board of Commissioners adopted an 
amendment to the zoning ordinance on 10-18-99 that made subdivisions of property in 
the CBI district a conditional use.  Mr. Muire continued by stating the applicant, Mrs.  
Leilani Watson, owns a vacant 6.784 acre tract and would like to subdivide the property 
to create three (3) new tracts accessed by a 20’ easement.  Mr. Muire referred to Exhibit 
“A” that reflected tract 1 is intended for Scott Watson; tract 2 to be retained by Mrs. 
Watson; and tract 3 conveyed to Steve Cottingham. 
 
Mr. Muire stated that staff review reveals the parcel does not have the necessary 
proximity or acreage to I-85 to be considered as commercial property and in all 
likelihood, the parcel will be recommended for rezoning to an appropriate residential 
category.    
 
Mr. Muire discussed the development requirements for a family subdivision, which 
require the following: 
 

 Subdivision approval 
 Zoning Compliance 
 Access 
 Septic Systems 
 Evaluation Criteria  

 
Mr. Muire stated that Planning Staff recommends approval of the request to subdivide 
Tax Parcel 414-050 in general accordance with Exhibit “A” based on findings indicated 
in the Staff Review. 
 
Chairman Blount inquired as to whether to the residential use of the property will impact 
the commercial use of the area.  
 
Mr. Muire responded that commercial development will not be affected. 
 
Chairman Blount officially closed the public hearing and went into deliberation. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to accept the recommendation as presented by 
Planning Staff.  Commissioner Andrews seconded the motion and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

 5



Chairman Blount reviewed the Findings of Fact to be as follows: 
 

 The subdivision of the parcel will not impact the commercial development of the 
area. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-21-01, A REQUEST FROM EARL CORRIHER: 
 
Chairman Blount declared the public hearing for consideration of CUP-19-01 to be in 
session and reviewed that the hearing would focus on an application submitted by Mr. 
Earl Corriher for subdividing property from tax parcel 111-008 currently zoned CBI 
(Commercial, Business, Industrial).  The parent tract is located on Corriher Gravel Road 
in China Grove Township. 
 
Chairman Blount reviewed the procedural guidelines for the public hearing. 
 
The Clerk administered the oath to those who came forward to provide testimony in the 
case. 
 
Those that came forward to provide testimony are as follows: 
 
Mr. Muire presented the case and explained that the Board of Commissioners adopted an 
amendment to the zoning ordinance on 10-18-99 that made subdivisions of property in 
the CBI district a conditional use.  Mr. Muire continued by stating that the applicant, Mr. 
Earl Corriher owns a 5.446-acre tract with approximately 186’ of Corriher Gravel Road 
frontage.  Mr. Muire referred to the map (Exhibit “A”), which depicted the proposed 
division, would create a .926-acre tract front Corriher Gravel Road intended for Shelia C. 
Brown. 
 
Mr. Muire stated that staff review reveals the parcel does not have the necessary 
proximity or acreage to I-85 to be considered as commercial property and in all 
likelihood, the parcel will be recommended for rezoning to an appropriate residential 
category.    
 
Mr. Muire discussed the development requirements for a family subdivision, which 
require the following: 
 

 Subdivision approval 
 Zoning Compliance 
 Access 
 Septic Systems 
 Evaluation Criteria  

 
Mr. Muire stated that Planning Staff recommends approval of the request to subdivide 
Tax Parcel 111-008 based on findings indicated in the Staff Review. 
 
Chairman Blount officially closed the public hearing and went into deliberation. 

 6



Commissioner Belk made a motion to approve CUP-21-01 as recommended by staff.  
Commissioner Tadlock seconded the motion and the motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Chairman Blount reviewed the Findings of Fact to be as follows: 
 

 The subdivision of the parcel will not impact the commercial development of the 
area. 

 
Mr. Muire requested that the Board of Commissioners allow the next Planning Board 
agenda to take into consideration allowing family subdivisions to be an approved use in 
the CBI district.  Mr. Muire estimated that approximately seventy-five percent of 
Conditional Use Permits during this year, as well as last year have been family 
subdivisions.  Mr. Muire explained that a family subdivision is three (3) lots or less.  
 
Chairman Blount asked if this would cause the county to run the risk of losing prime 
industrial areas.  Mr. Muire responded this was an issue the Planning Board could 
consider.   
 
 It was the consensus of the Board of Commissioners for the Planning Board to make a 
recommendation concerning this issue. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE MOBILE 
HOME PARK STANDARDS: 
 
Before opening the public hearing, Chairman Blount reminded the audience that the 
Board of Commissioners, by a slim majority, had previously taken a stance that new 
mobile home park standards would require mobile home parks built prior to 1998 to have 
a minimum 16-foot wide internal road.  Chairman Blount stated that the Commissioners 
had met one-on-one with each other, talked to park owners and citizens and by consensus 
planned to eliminate the requirement for existing mobile home parks. 
 
Commissioner Andrews clarified that the existing mobile homes parks meant parks prior 
to 1998.  
 
Chairman Blount stated that staff and the Board of Commissioners were still concerned 
about access for emergency vehicles.  Chairman Blount continued by saying if access for 
these vehicles were to become a problem, then the issue will be raised again and the 
Board will go through the notification and hearing process again. 
 
Chairman Blount declared the public hearing in session and requested those who wished 
to address the board to please come forward.   
 

1. Dan Duganne, owner of Conestoga Mobile Home Park thanked the Board for the 
change in the road width requirement.  Mr. Duganne questioned the trash issue 
and whether the text meant weekly household garbage or did mobile home park 
owners have to worry about refrigerators, washers and dryers and carpet?  Dan 

 7



Duganne felt people must be made responsible for themselves.  He stated that 
owners “don’t take renters to raise” and wondered why “owners” are held 
responsible for “renters”. 

 
Chairman Blount stated that the text was fairly clear and the mobile home park owners 
must provide a centralized dumpster or individually covered trashcans.  Chairman Blount 
requested staff to clarify. 
 
Mr. Lytle acknowledged that this was a correct statement, but stated that the park grounds 
are to be kept free from trash and debris, which is the park owners responsibility. 
 

2. Tim Smith, owner of Matika Villa Mobile Home Park on Airport Road, addressed 
the Board.  Mr. Smith stated that he rents 110 mobile home lots and rents 20 
apartments in Matika Villa.  Mr. Smith feels mobile home park owners are 
responsible for the condition of the parks and applauded the Board of 
Commissioners for tackling the issue.  Mr. Smith continued by saying his park 
conforms to standards and extended his thanks to the Board.  Mr. Smith also 
stated that mobile homes and mobile home parks have taken “bad raps” over the 
years.  Mr. Smith stated that mobile homes are affordable housing and he thanked 
the Board for “doing the right thing.” 

 
Commissioner Chamberlain inquired as to how many mobile homes Mr. Smith owns out 
of the 110 mobile home lots that he rents out.  Mr. Smith stated that he did not own any 
mobile homes and that he only rents out the land. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked about junked appliances and Mr. Smith responded that he has a 
junk man who picks up old appliances and sells them for scrap.  Mr. Smith stated that he 
has put up road signs for the fire departments and EMS vehicles, and that he also has a 
manager who lives on site at Matika Villa, twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week.  
Mr. Smith has rules that tenants are required to sign and if the tenants fail to abide by the 
rules, then they are evicted. 
 

3. June Smith, owner of Happy Grove Mobile Home Park, stated that he appreciates 
the Board allowing the road widths to remain the same.   

 
4. Randy Goodman stated that if the issue concerning road widths ever resurfaces, 

the Board should look beyond mobile home parks due to some subdivisions and 
state roads that do not meet the 16-foot requirement.   

 
With no further citizens who wished to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the 
public hearing at 7:45 pm.  
 
Chairman Blount discussed the street modifications with Marion Lytle, emphasizing 
Section 13 a1.1 of the Rowan County Zoning Ordinance “Internal Streets”.   Mr. Lytle 
suggested it to read:  “Internal Streets must be maintain in good condition either hard 
surface or graveled”.    

 8



Chairman Blount suggested the part on paved and graveled roads less than sixteen (16) 
feet in width must be expanded would be eliminated and to leave in the section that roads 
must be free of potholes and rough surfaces and ponding of water. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain reiterated to Mr. Lytle that the only changes to be made 
concerned the road widths. 
 
Commissioner Belk asked if the “light repair for the potholes” would remain in the text 
and Chairman Blount said that it would. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain made a motion to adopt the text amendments with the 
modifications as presented.  Commissioner Tadlock seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
COMMENTS FROM SHERIFF WILHELM: 
 
Sheriff Wilhelm thanked the Board for its condolences in the loss of his father. 
 
Sheriff Wilhelm presented the Board with a plaque to express his appreciation for the 
Board’s support of the Rowan County Sheriff’s Department in its battle against drugs. 
 
Chairman Blount called for a break at 7:55 pm.   
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:10 pm. 
 
PRESENTATION ON THE ANTIQUE FARM EQUIPMENT DISPLAY AT 
SLOAN PARK: 
 
Jim Foltz, Director of the Rowan County Parks & Recreation Department, addressed the 
Board concerning the erection of an antique farm machinery exhibit facility at Sloan 
Park.   Mr. Foltz turned the presentation over to Mr. David Hall.  
 
David Hall stated that the presentation before the Board is to request the Board’s 
approval for the concept of the program, and not to request any funding at this point.  Mr. 
Hall stated this would be a nice attraction for Rowan County and Sloan Park. 
 
Mr. Foltz stated that he had received numerous calls from citizens wishing to donate 
equipment and materials for the display. 
 
Commissioner Andrews stated that this sounds like an outstanding project with the 
donations of equipment and volunteers for the project and with the approval of the Parks 
and Recreation Board.  Commissioner Andrews inquired what was stopping the project 
from proceeding?  Mr. Foltz responded that they were “bogged down” and that he had 
also been waiting on the response of an individual who had previously been willing to 
donate $5,000 for the project.  Mr. Foltz stated that there was also the possibility of the 
Rowan Museum helping to operate the facility.   

 9



 
Commissioner Belk pointed out that this would be an educational trip for the children 
who are in the area on other field trips to the Lazy 5 Ranch and Patterson’s Farm. 
 
Mr. Hall stated that the completion of the project could fall in line with Rowan County’s 
upcoming 250th Birthday Celebration in 2003.  
 
Mr. Foltz responded to an inquiry from Commissioner Tadlock that the equipment would 
be in a controlled climate to prevent the equipment from deteriorating. 
 
Commissioner Andrews stated that he felt the project would be highly successful. 
 
Commissioner Belk made a motion to endorse the concept of the antique farm equipment 
display.  Commissioner Andrews seconded the motion and the motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION ON PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES FOR THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS, PLANNING BOARD, ZONING BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENTS: 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain stated that he has noticed that in most of the meetings he 
attends, the boards follow Roberts Rules of Order.  Commissioner Chamberlain stated 
that Mr. Joseph Ferrell, from the Institute of Government, has consented to present a 
workshop to boards in Rowan County concerning procedural matters.  Commissioner 
Chamberlain suggested the Planning Board, School Board, Zoning Board of Adjustments 
or any other boards interested in procedural guidelines attend the workshop.   
 
The Board held a brief discussion concerning the workshop. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain made a motion to have a public workshop to discuss the 
rules of order for various boards.  Commissioner Andrews seconded the motion and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION ON HOW CITIZENS ARE APPOINTED TO THE LOCAL 
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES: 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain discussed the procedure for board appointments and stated 
that he would like to see a two (2)-person committee established to interview board 
applicants.   
 
Chairman Blount asked if the board application should be made more extensive.   
 
Commissioner Andrews stated that he understood what Commissioner Chamberlain was 
saying.  Commissioner Andrews feels there are many boards and the volunteers are to be 
commended.  Commissioner Andrews continued by saying it is often a struggle to fill a  
 

 10



 
 
vacancy on a board and that he reviews the applications very closely in order to select the 
most qualified individuals. 
 
The board devoted considerable discussion to this issue and by consensus decided to 
continue following the same procedures for the application process for perspective board 
members.  
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
Airport Resolutions 
 
Mr. Russell presented to the Board two (2) Block Grant Agreements, one for the BST 
Runway Rehabilitation and one for the Corporate Taxiway.  Mr. Russell asked the Board 
for approval of two resolutions for the agreement for the Block Grant Air 21 funds 
totaling $150,000, with a ten percent match from Rowan County, which is in the County 
Budget.  These funds will be used to improve and extend the runway.  Mr. Russell 
informed the Board that if all goes well, another $150,000 will be received on October 1, 
2001.  Rowan County has been awarded $150,000 for three years and hopefully the 
Board will consider the completion of the taxiway as a number one priority. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to approve both resolutions.  Commissioner 
Andrews seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Old Business 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain reminded the Board of the $20,000 that was approved for the 
removal of abandoned mobile homes at the last meeting and discussed a mobile home 
park in Landis owned by David Woods, called the “Greens”.  Commissioner 
Chamberlain said that there were approximately 25 mobile homes that are being taken 
apart and asked what Mr. Woods was doing with the debris.  
 
Commissioner Tadlock asked for clarification that the mobile homes belonged to other 
people and Mr. Woods owns only the land.  Don Conner said that he felt this was an 
accurate statement.   
 
Mr. Conner stated that there were plans for the fire departments to go in and burn these 
homes, but this plan fell through.  Mr. Conner stated that these are mobile homes that 
could end up in the landfill, but these are not mobile homes being enforced by Rowan 
County and Rowan County would not pay to haul off to the landfill. 
 
 
 
 
 

 11



 12

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 
 
Chairman Blount opened the public comment period to entertain comments from those in 
attendance. 
 
There being no one that wished to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the public 
comment period. 
 
Chairman Blount adjourned the meeting to go into Closed Session at 8:55 pm. 
 
Chairman Blount reconvened the meeting back into Open Session.  There being no 
further business the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 pm. 
 
      Respectively Submitted, 
 
 
 
      Rita K. Foil, 
      Clerk to the Board 
 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


